
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Resources Department 
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 

 

 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE A 

 

Members of Licensing Sub Committee A are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
by Zoom on 18 November 2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 

Link to meeting: https://weareislington.zoom.uk/j/98286161312 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 10 November 2021 

 
 
Membership Substitute 

 
Councillor Nick Wayne (Chair) 
Councillor Anjna Khurana (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Dave Poyser 
 

All other members of the Licensing committee 

 

Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 
 
Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  

Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack

https://weareislington.zoom.uk/j/98286161312


 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 

 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 

 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it 
becomes apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in 
the discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) 
and the council. 

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.  

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a 
place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of 
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 

 

5.  Order of Business 

 

 

6.  Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
 

1 - 10 



 
 
 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  Boca's, 178-180 St John Street, EC1V 3JY - New premises licence 
 

11 - 94 

C.  

 

Urgent non-exempt items 

 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for 
urgency will be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

  

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items 
on the agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of 

exempt or confidential information within the terms of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether 
to exclude the press and public during discussion thereof. 
  

 

E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 
urgently by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for 
urgency will be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 
  

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   

  

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

  

INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 

1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 

Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 

permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  

2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 

detailed below. 

 

  

CONSIDERA TION OF APPLICATIONS:  

  

N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present 

a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  

3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 

representations. 

Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  

4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 

requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.  

10 

mins 

  

5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  

  

6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 

requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.  

10 

mins 

  

7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  

  

8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 

any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 

mins 

  

9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 

10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 

Policy. 

 

 

11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 

representations     given above. 

 

 

CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  

12)  Responsible Authorities 2 

13)  Interested parties mins 

14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERA TION AND DECISION  
 

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 

remain with the Sub-Committee. 
 

 

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 

clarification. 
 

 

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 

licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 
 
 



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee A held by Zoom on 9 September 

2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 

Present: Councillors:   Phil Graham, Angela Picknell, Marian Spall, Ben 
Mackmurdie and Flora Williamson 

 
 

Angela Picknell in the Chair 
 

 
142 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 

Councillor Angela Picknell welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and 
members introduced themselves.  The procedure for the conduct of the meeting 
was outlined. 
 

143 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Nick Wayne, Anjna Khurana 
and Dave Poyser. 

 
144 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 

Councillor Angela Picknell substituted for Councillor Nick Wayne for the meeting, 

Councillor Marian Spall substituted for Councillor Anjna Khurana and Councillor Phil 
Graham substituted for Councillor Dave Poyser for Item B1. Councillor Ben 
Mackmurdie substituted for Councillor Anjna Khurana and Councillor Flora 

Williamson substituted for Councillor Dave Poyser for Item B4. 
 

145 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 

There were no declarations of interest.  
 

146 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The order of business would be as the agenda. It was noted that Items B2 and B3 

had been withdrawn from the agenda. 
 

147 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6) 

RESOLVED: 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2021 be confirmed as an accurate 
record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 

 
148 THE PEEL INSTITUTE, 3 CORNERS CENTRE, NORTHAMPTON ROAD, EC1R 

0HU - NEW PREMISES TRANSFER (Item B1) 

The licensing officer reported that the application was for the sale of alcohol and 
recorded music from midday until 9.30pm and up until 11pm for no more than two 
events a month.  The applicant had invited the residents to a meeting to discuss the 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

2 
 

application and one resident had attended. An email had been sent with the change 
of hours and with conditions proposed.  All 15 residents maintained their objection. 

To clarify, the licensing officer confirmed that an email had been sent with the 
amended hours and with conditions proposed.   
 

Two residents spoke in objection to the application.  The first resident stated that 
this was an application for a members’ entertainment club with an alcohol licence in 
the guise of a cookery school.  He considered that alcohol and the playing of music 

was incompatible with studying. He had found no qualified teacher or chef 
associated with the premises and there were no certificates issued. He stated that 
the website photos indicated that there was a high proportion of students would be 
Muslim and who were forbidden alcohol.  If this was a cookery school the 

application should not be granted. The premises was close to a block of flats and 
thirty customers consuming alcohol up until 9.30 or 10pm each evening would be 
noisy and on event days twice a month until 11 or midnight would be very noisy. 

The premises was not purpose built to retain noise and music would be audible. A 
condition regarding ambient background levels of music would not be enforceable. 
He considered that students could pay more for the lessons rather than the alcohol 

and they did not need the 24 events each year. In the last financial year the 
business received a net profit of £100,000 and it could carry out charitable activities 
without an alcohol licence. A second resident stated that he worked in a building 

where the office already had noise from the playground which could be distracting.  
A noise survey had been carried out which stated that, as this area was so quiet, 
noise rarely exceeded 50 decibels and noise from traffic would be higher at 65 

decibels. Recorded music in an evening would be intrusive and a condition to keep 
doors and windows closed at all times would be impossible to maintain. Bass music 
would be a problem. The resident was less concerned with the sale of alcohol. The 
purpose of the charity was a good one and he had an increasing degree of 

confidence in the applicant but he was concerned about the noise levels particularly 
as this was such a quiet area and low levels of noise could be disturbing.  
 

In response to questions, it was noted that one of the residents present at the 
meeting attended the resident meeting. The resident who attended was encouraged 
that the venue would be well run but was seeking assurance about the background 

noise. He did experience playground noise but was concerned about the duration of 
the noise. 
 

The applicant stated that he had worked as a chef for ten years and had been a 
cookery teacher for five years.  The Head of Operations stated that he had not 
received a noise complaint in this time. They had chefs from around 50 countries 

and would not serve alcohol if chef was not comfortable to do so and had a diverse 
group of about 12 staff. Any profit was being invested in refurbishment and would 
also help the charity to become financially viable in the long term.  Classes were to 
be held from 6.30pm to 9pm and last orders were likely to be from 8.30pm. A glass 

of wine could then be served with the class. The music would not be loud and 
would be background. A phone number would be available and he would meet with 
residents if there was a problem. They wanted to be good neighbours. All conditions 

were accepted. There would be 24 cooking stations and classes would not exceed 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

3 
 

30 persons including staff. It was likely to be 14 persons. The windows would be 
closed and sound levels would not be any louder than music from adjacent flats. 

Music could not be played if the windows needed to be open.  
 
In response to questions, it was noted that the charity issued certificates but these 

were not accredited. The charity started at cafes and had grown. The premises 
would not be a bar and alcohol offered would only be a glass or two of wine and 
people would not be drinking heavily. 

 
In summary, a local resident stated that the activities were worthy but the applicant 
had not addressed why the sale of alcohol or music were necessary for the cookery 
school. In addition, the 24 events per year had not been addressed.  A second 

resident stated that he was supportive of the charity and welcomed discussion with 
neighbours. He remained concerned about the constant noise as sound carried and 
a phone number for residents may not be enough.  

 
The applicant stated that the bass would be turned down. Classes lasted 2 ½ hours 
and music/alcohol would not be for all classes.  There were to be a maximum of 

two events per month and it was not expected that the hours applied for would be 
used but they required the flexibility of the hours requested. They were not sure 
what these events would be but would be in keeping with the cookery school e.g. 

graduation ceremonies. Islington Council was the landlord and would also have 
some control over these events if necessary. 
 

RESOLVED 
1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of The Peel Institute, 

3 Corners Centre, Northampton Road, EC1R 0HU, be granted to allow:- 
 

a) The provision of recorded music from 12 noon until 9.30pm for cookery 

 classes and from 12 noon until 11pm Monday to Friday for events of no 
 more than 24 a year. 

b) To allow the sale of alcohol on the premises from 12 noon until 9.30pm, 

 Monday to Sunday and from 12 noon until 11pm for no more than 24 
 events a year. 

c) The premises to be open to the public, Monday to Sunday from 9am to 
 11pm. 

 
2) That conditions detailed on pages 38 to 41 of the agenda be applied to the 

licence. 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
This meeting was facilitated by Zoom. 
 

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

4 
 

the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises 
fall within the Clerkenwell cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 3 creates a 

rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation of premises 
licences which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be 
refused following the receipt of representations, unless the applicant can 

demonstrate in the operation schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
 

Fifteen local resident objections had been received.  Conditions had been agreed 
with the Licensing Authority, Noise Team and Police.  

 
The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought were within the hours specified in 
licensing policy 6. 

 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from two local residents. One resident 
expressed concern that the consumption of alcohol and playing of music was 
incompatible with studying and learning. The resident expressed concern regarding 

possible noise at the premises, stating that the building was not purpose built to 
retain noise and that music would be audible to neighbours. A second resident 
stated that he was less concerned the serving of alcohol but was very concerned 

about noise. He attended a meeting arranged by the applicant at the premises and 
stated that the staff were very helpful and gave him an increasing degree of 
confidence but he remained concerned that noise would be disturbing to neighbours 

as it was a quiet area. He was also concerned about the duration of any possible 
noise. 
 

The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the applicant that he had worked as a 
chef for ten years and had taught for five years for various different charities. The 
Head of Operations stated that the charity had won lots of awards for cookery 

classes which had mainly taken place in different cafes over the past few years. The 
cookery classes were run by different chefs from different countries and alcohol 
would not be served at any class where the chef did not feel comfortable to do so. 
The charity had been able to make money during lockdown and this had been 

reinvested. The selling of alcohol would allow the charity to remain a viable ongoing 
concern and any surplus was reinvested into the charitable objectives. Most of the 
cookery classes would end at 9pm and music would never be too loud as the chefs 

had to talk over the top of it. The applicant was concerned to ensure that no 
neighbours were disturbed by noise and would be putting a landline telephone into 
the room so that neighbours could call them directly if there was a problem. The 

room had 24 cooking stations and it was anticipated that classes would have an 
average of 14 people. The Head of Operations confirmed that they had asked for a 
maximum of two events per month to give the charity flexibility for events such as 

their launch party, graduation ceremonies or occasional meet ups for chefs. They 
did not anticipate that they would use all the extra hours.   
 

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

5 
 

The Sub-Committee concluded that the granting of the licence with the reduction in 
hours requested by the applicant and the agreed conditions would promote the 

licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee noted that the reduced hours sought were 
within the hours specified in licensing policy 5 and 6.  The Sub-Committee was 
satisfied that the operating schedule demonstrated high standards of management 

and that the proposed use, with the extensive conditions agreed, meant that the 
premises would not add to the cumulative impact. 
 

The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the premises licence was 
proportionate and appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 

149 FANCY DELIVERY, 21 PARKFIELD STREET, N1 0PS - NEW PREMISES 

LICENCE (Item B2) 
The Sub-Committee noted that this item had been withdrawn from the agenda. 
 

150 VIVA LA PIZZA, 367 HOLLOWAY ROAD, LONDON, N7 0RN - TRANSFER OF 
PREMISES LICENCE (Item B3) 
The Sub-Committee noted that this item had been withdrawn from the agenda. 

 
151 PARADISO DESI RESTAURANT, 230 HORNSEY ROAD, N7 7LL - NEW 

PREMISES LICENCE (Item B4) 

The licensing officer reported that a resident had sent in an email which was 
received at short notice and was unable to be referenced this evening. 
 

The licensing authority stated that the applicant had accepted conditions with the 
police regarding CCTV and no vertical drinking. She considered that the rear garden 
should be closed at 9pm. Regulated entertainment had not been applied for. 
Planning issues had been resolved but it was considered that the premises should 

only operate until 11pm in line with planning consent.  The applicant would then 
need to apply for planning consent for additional hours on Friday and Saturday. The 
licence had been previously applied for and refused so the Sub-Committee must be 

satisfied regarding the standards of management and that the premises would 
uphold the licensing objectives and not cause a nuisance to residents. In response 
to a question it was noted that planning permission regarding the frontage had now 

been resolved but the hours applied for were beyond the planning consent hours. 
 
Three local objectors spoke against the application. It was stated that the rear 

doors were not sound proofed and customers entering in and out, next to Thane 
Works, would cause a noise nuisance as it had in the past. Barbecues and drinking 
in the street had been a previous issue. A second resident stated that the last 

application had been refused due to the lack of experience of the applicant and she 
did not consider that further experience would have been obtained during 
lockdown. The father of the applicant was managing two other premises in the area 
which were rowdy and the female manager would find it difficult to manage male 

establishments. This was a very narrow premises and would not be family friendly 
as there would be nowhere to park. There was already a premises at the rear that 
did not stop at 9pm in the garden, although it was granted until this time, and the 

resident was concerned that this would happen again. The noise bounced off the 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

6 
 

walls and could be heard clearly. A further resident stated that the noise could not 
be controlled already and this would be one more premises which would make it 

worse. Residents had been threatened by patrons. It would be difficult for women 
to control this behaviour. Noise from other premises funnelled along the rear. The 
Chair reminded residents that they would need to talk about the issues regarding 

this application and not about the behaviour of patrons from other premises.  
 
The applicant’s representative stated that late night refreshment was requested for 

Friday and Saturday only. There was no regulated entertainment applied for. The 
applicant had proposed the majority of conditions and two others had been 
accepted from the police. An application had been made to the planning authority 
for an extension of hours and the Sub-Committee were asked to note that licensing 

and planning were separate regimes. This was an application for a restaurant. The 
police requested that there be no vertical drinking and this was agreed. Music would 
be at a background level and no speakers would be allowed in the outside area. A 

launch party was held under TENs which did attract attention but this was not a 
reflection of how the restaurant would be trading. The applicant had experience in a 
university bar and the DPS had relevant experience at the Emirates, Wetherspoons 

and Stonegate since 2011. They would run the premises competently. There was a 
dispersal policy and objectors could not say that issues that occurred at other 
premises would happen here. It had not been open except for two days with TENs. 

The planning issues had been dealt with. This was not a bar. They would not want 
the rear garden to be closed at 9pm.  It was a small seating area with room for no 
more than eight people.  The Environmental Health team had not raised any issues 

and they were the experts. Many measures had been put in place and he asked that 
the application be granted. 
 
In response to questions, the applicant’s representative stated that the proposed 

conditions would mitigate the cumulative impact. There was a two hour turn around 
for meals as they did not want patrons to linger.  The dispersal policy was 
comprehensive for a restaurant. There would be no speakers outside and outside 

areas would be supervised. The music played would be background level only and 
he did not consider that this would have an impact on the local area. The objections 
were based on an assumption. The applicant did not consider there was a concern 

about the rear garden being open up until 11pm. This had been discussed with the 
Environmental Health team and had not considered that there would be a problem. 
He considered that a 9pm closure was too early. This was a restaurant and walls 

were covered with foliage to dampen the sound.  Sound proofing in the premises 
was not considered necessary as this was a restaurant with background noise. 
There would be a contact telephone number placed inside the premises for 

residents and would be made available on request.  
 
In response to questions, the applicant’s representative stated that a gate at the 
rear, referred to in the representations, must refer to a different premises. For 

clarification he confirmed that the hours applied for were for the sale of alcohol 
11.30am to 11pm Sunday to Thursday with an extension to midnight on Friday and 
Saturday and late night refreshment until midnight on Friday and Saturday. On the 

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

7 
 

day preceding a Bank Holiday the hours would reflect those requested for a 
Saturday. Opening hours would commence at 9am. 

 
In summary, the residents stated that this may appear to be a restaurant but selling 
large amounts of alcohol led to raucous conversation, would disturb people in the 

area and would make their business difficult to pursue when they needed peace and 
quiet. They stated that they could hear noise already and it would seem that the 
premises would be having a BBQ party every night.  The foliage was plastic and 

would not prevent noise escape. The rear door was the type to remain open. There 
was a concern that the premises would start off as a nice restaurant but would turn 
into a vertical bar.  
 

The applicant’s representative stated that residents could not look at the other 
premises for problems when looking at this application.  The restaurant would be a 
good addition to the local area and he asked that the Sub-Committee grant the 

application.  
 
 

RESOLVED 
1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Paradiso Desi 

Restaurant, 230 Hornsey Road, N7 7LL, be granted to allow the sale of 

alcohol, for consumption on the premises from Monday to Sunday 11:30 am 
until 11 pm. 
 

2) That conditions outlined on pages 161 to 164 of the agenda be applied to the 
licence with the following amendments:- 
 
a) Deletion of 11d 

b) External seating areas must be cleared and closed by 21:00 hours every 
day (Replace proposed condition 25). 

c) Tables and chairs in the external areas of the premises shall be rendered 

unusable by 21:00 hours every day. (Replace condition 33). 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
This meeting was facilitated by Zoom. 
 

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 
the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 

the Council’s Licensing Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises 

fall within the Holloway Road and Finsbury Park cumulative impact area.  Licensing 
policy 3 creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation 
of premises licences which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will 

normally be refused following the receipt of representations, unless the applicant 
can demonstrate in the operation schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 

Page 7



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

8 
 

 
Five local residents and two local businesses objected to the application. Conditions 

had been agreed with the Police and Noise Team. The Licensing Authority 
representation remained.  
 

The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought were within the hours specified in 
licensing policy 6. 
 

The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the Licensing Authority that it was 
satisfied with condition 11 in respect of alcohol being served ancillary from food and 
there would be no vertical drinking. The licensing authority remained concerned 
regarding public nuisance in particular that the rear garden should be closed by 

9pm. The planning issues had been resolved but the premises could only operate 
until 11pm and it was the Licensing Authority’s view that licensable activities should 
only be granted until 11pm in line with planning. The Licensing Authority confirmed 

that there were no issues with planning permission for the frontage of the premises. 
 

The Sub-Committee heard evidence from three local objectors concerned about 
noise from the premises. The first objector was concerned that the rear doors of the 
premises were not sound proofed and that garrulous and raucous conversation 

would cause a disturbance. There were a lot of residential properties in the vicinity 
of the premises and the area would take a turn for the worst with more drinkers 
and noise from the garden. The second objector expressed concerns about the 

management style and that residents would be disturbed by noise at the back of 
the premises. Noise bounced off the walls and could be heard really clearly. There 
was a problem in the area with groups of men loitering outside licensed premises. 

The third objector expressed concern that the Local Authority and the Police could 
not control the nuisance caused by existing premises and that one more premises 
would be another nail in the coffin for the area. Noise from the premises rang out 

and was funnelled along the masonry walls. The Sub-Committee noted the issues 
that had been raised by residents in their objections around noise and disorder from 
the premises launch party covered by a TEN. 
 

The Sub-Committee heard from the applicants’ representative that there were 

inaccuracies in the report in the agenda papers. Late night refreshment was sought 
on Friday and Saturday only, there was no regulated entertainment and the 
applicant had proposed the 38 conditions rather than the responsible authorities. In 

relation to planning the premises had always had A3 planning consent and an 
application had already been lodged to extend the permitted hours. The applicants’ 
representative confirmed that the premises was a restaurant and not anything else. 

In discussions with the police the applicant had agreed to remove the ability to have 
people waiting for a table at the bar. Music would only be at an ambient 
background level and there were no speakers outside.  The premises had not been 

trading other than under two TENs. Music was played at the launch party but this 
would not be typical of the operation of the premises. The applicant had experience 
working in a university bar and the DPS had experience working at the Emirates, 
Wetherspoons and Stonegate. The premises had a comprehensive dispersal policy 

and what happened at other premises in the area was not reflective of what would 

Page 8



Licensing Sub Committee A -  9 September 2021 

 

9 
 

happen here. The applicants’ representative confirmed that the applicant disagreed 
that the outside area needed to close at 9pm, the area was very small and could fit 

no more than eight people and the Environmental Health Team had no issues. 
There were many conditions regarding noise and it would be no worse than people 
sitting in the garden. The outside area was surrounded by a high wall covered in 

foliage to dampen noise. The premises would have a contact telephone number 
visible outside the premises for any neighbours who experienced noise problems. 
 

The Sub-Committee noted that although the applicant had submitted a planning 
application in relation to the permitted hours, this had not been determined yet and 
planning only permitted use until 11pm. The Sub-Committee was aware that the 
Planning and Licensing regimes were separate but noted that residents were 

extremely concerned about noise late at night, especially following the launch party 
at the premises, and was not satisfied that the conditions proposed would protect 
the amenity of residents in light of the later hours sought on Fridays and Saturdays. 

The Sub-Committee therefore concluded that, balancing the needs of the business 
and local residents, it would be proportionate and appropriate to grant the licence in 
line with the planning consent currently in place.  

 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that allowing the premises to use the external 
area at the rear until 11pm every night would cause excessive noise disturbance to 

neighbours in a quiet residential area. Although the applicant had agreed that there 
would be no speakers outside, and had covered the walls with foliage, the Sub-
Committee noted the neighbours’ fears that noise would funnel out of the rear 

garden and affect their amenity.  The Sub-Committee therefore concluded that it 
was proportionate to render the rear garden unusable at 9pm so that residents 
would not be disturbed late at night, potentially every night.  
 

The Sub-Committee concluded that the granting of the licence with the agreed 
conditions and the reduced hours would promote the licensing objectives. The Sub-
Committee was satisfied that the operating schedule demonstrated high standards 

of management and that the proposed use, with the extensive conditions agreed 
and reduction in hours, meant that the premises would not add to the cumulative 
impact.  

 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 8.45 pm 
 
 

 
 
 
CHAIR 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  Environment & Regeneration
  Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR 
 
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 
 

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s): 

Licensing Sub-Committee - A 18/11/2021 Bunhill 
 

 Exempt Non-exempt 
 
 

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 
RE: BOCA’S, 178-180 ST JOHN STREET, EC1V 4JY 

1. Synopsis 

1.1 This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2 The new application is to allow: 

• The provision of regulated entertainment by way of performance of dance, live 
music and recorded music, Sunday to Wednesday, from 10:00 until Midnight, 
Thursday, from 10:00 to 01:00,  Friday and Saturday, from 10:00 to 01:30. 

• Late Night Refreshment, Sunday to Wednesday, from, 23:00 until Midnight, 
Thursday, from 23:00 to 01:30, Friday and Saturday, from 23:00 to 02:00. 

• The sale of alcohol, On and Off the premises, Sunday to Wednesday, from 10:00 
until Midnight, Thursday, from 10:00 to 01:00, Friday and Saturday, from 10:00 
to 01:30. 

• The opening hours of the premises, Sunday to Wednesday, from 09:00 to 
Midnight, Thursday from 09:00 to 01:30, Friday and Saturday, from 09:00 to 02:00 

2. Relevant Representations 

Licensing Authority Yes: suggested conditions 

Metropolitan Police Yes: suggested conditions 

Page 11

Agenda Item B1



 

Noise Yes:  

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards Yes: suggested conditions 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Twenty Six residents 

Other bodies No:  

3. Background 

3.1 This property has held a licence previously, originally granted in September 2005.  The 
premises licence allowed the following licensable activities;  

• Live music, recorded music, performance of dance, late night refreshment and the 
On and Off sales of alcohol from 10:00 until 00:00 Sunday to Thursday and from 
10:00 until 01:00 Friday and Saturday.  

• Opening hours from 10:00 until 00:30 Sunday to Thursday and from 10:00 until 
01:30 Friday and Saturday.  

3.2 The licence was transferred in 2016, the Premises Licence Holders company dissolved in 
2020 and the licence subsequently lapsed. 

3.3 On 30th September 2021, a new application for a premises licence was made. 

3.4 The Licensing Authority received twenty six letters of representation in opposition to this 
application from local residents. On receipt of the representations the application has 
submitted in response details of the nature of the business.  

3.5 In response to the representations, the applicant sent a letter introducing himself and 
outlining the nature of the business. This document has been forwarded to the 
representors.  This applicant has also provided four sheets of signatures from customers 
at his premises, some live very close to the premises, others live further afield.  

4. Planning Implications 

4.1 The Planning and Development Section have the following comments to make in 
relation to the above application. 

4.2 This premises licence indicates that the use of these premises in connection with a 
restaurant/Bar. Under the current land use order, restaurant use is, classified under 
Class E whilst bar (drinking establishment) has no land use classification and deemed to 
be “Sui Generis”. The current use would be therefore be a mixed use of Class E and Sui 
generis 

Page 12



 

4.3 Planning records indicate that a conditional planning permission (Ref: P021238) was 
granted on 17/09/2007 with specific reference for the premises to be used as a 
restaurant. The permitted hours stipulated in Condition 1 states “the use shall not 
operate except between the hours of 0900 and 2400 on any day” 

4.4 The licence further explains the land use as “Live music will be provided on request 
from customers wishing to book the premise for private functions e.g. birthday parties 
or celebrations. Each event will be subjected to a risk assessment to determine the 
adequate measures in order to maintain and promote the licensing objectives” 

4.5 The Licensable activities and timings applied for in the licence application are as follows: 
 

Live Music - Sunday-Wednesday: 10:00-00:00, Thursday 10:00-01:00, Friday & Saturday: 
10:00-01:30 

 
Recorded Music - Sunday-Wednesday: 10:00-00:00, Thursday 10:00-01:00, Friday & 
Saturday: 10:00-01:30 

 
Performance of Dance - Sunday-Wednesday: 10:00-00:00, Thursday 10:00-01:00, Friday & 
Saturday: 10:00-01:30 

 
Similar to E,F or G (Above) - Sunday-Wednesday: 10:00-00:00, Thursday 10:00-01:00, 
Friday & Saturday: 10:00-01:30 
 
Late Night Refreshment - Sunday-Wednesday: 23:00-00:00, Thursday 23:00-01:30, Friday 
& Saturday: 23:00-02:00 
 
Supply of alcohol (on & off) - 10:00-00:00, Thursday 10:00-01:00, Friday & Saturday: 
10:00-01:30 

 
Opening Hours – 09:00-00:00, Thursday 09:00-01:30, Friday & Saturday: 09:00-02:00 

 
Within the context that both planning land use and permitted hours are at odds with the licence 
application, this Department objects to this application. 

 

4.6 There are no current planning enforcement investigations outstanding in connection 
with this property. 

5. Recommendations 

5.1 To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

5.2 These premises are located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states that there is 
a presumption of refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there will be no adverse 
cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

5.3 If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 3); and 

Page 13



 

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four 
licensing objectives.(see appendix 3) 

6. Reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant 
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: application form; 
Appendix 2: representations; 
Appendix 3: applicant response to representations; 
Appendix 4: applicant further support for the application;  
Appendix 5: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

Background papers: 

None. 

Final report clearance: 

Signed by:  

 

 

 
 Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 

8 November 2021

Page 14

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


Application for a premises licence to be granted 

under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 

completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 

answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Paolo Bars Ltd 

         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 

described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the 

relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Part 1 – Premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

178-180 St John Street,
Clerkenwell,

Post town London Postcode EC1V 4JY 

Telephone number at premises (if any) 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £90,000.00 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate 

a) an individual or individuals * please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual * 

i as a limited company/limited liability 

partnership 

please complete section (B) 

ii as a partnership (other than limited liability) please complete section (B) 

iii as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B) 

iv other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B) 

c) a recognised club please complete section (B) 

d) a charity please complete section (B) 

Appendix 1

Page 15



e) the proprietor of an educational establishment  please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 

 

 

 

ga) 

 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the 

Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an 

independent hospital in Wales 

 

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 

1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within 

the meaning of that Part) in an independent 

hospital in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 

England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box 

below):     

 

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 

premises for licensable activities; or 
 

I am making the application pursuant to a   

 statutory function or  

 a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  

 

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 

 
First names 

 

Date of birth                  I am 18 years old or over  Please tick yes 

Nationality               British    

Current residential 

address if different from 

premises address 

 

Post town  Postcode  

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
      

 

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname First names 

Page 16



            

Date of birth                                   I am 18 years old or over  Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current postal address if 

different from premises 

address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
      

 

 

 

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS 

 

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please 

give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a 

body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned. 

 

Name 

Paolo Bars Ltd 

Address 

180 St. John Street, London, EC1V 4JY 

Registered number (where applicable) 

 

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.) 

Limited Company 

Telephone number (if any)  

      

E-mail address (optional) 

      

 

Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 
DD MM YYYY 

       A  S A  P 
 

Page 17



If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when 

do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 

                
 

 

 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 

Restaurant/Bar 

 

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any 

one time, please state the number expected to attend. 
      

 

 

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 

 

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 

 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)         
Please tick all that 

apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  

(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 
 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box L)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 18



A 

 

Plays  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 

guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the performance of plays at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 19



B 
 

Films  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors 

or outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 3)  

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 20



C 
 

Indoor sporting events  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 21



D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 

entertainments  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 

entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed 

in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 22



E 
 

 

 

 

Live music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 00:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Live music will be provided on request from customers wishing 
to book the premise for private functions e.g. birthday parties or 
celebrations. Each event will be subjected to a risk assessment 
to determine the adequate measures in order to maintain and 
promote the licensing objectives.  
 

            

Tue 10:00 00:00 

            

Wed 10:00 00:00 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 10:00 01:00 

            

Fri 10:00 01:30 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the performance of live music at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat 10:00 01:30 

            

Sun 10:00 00:00 

            

 

Page 23



F 
 

Recorded music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 00:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Recorded music will be provided on request from customers 
wishing to book the premise for private functions e.g. birthday 
parties or celebrations. Each event will be subjected to a risk 
assessment to determine the adequate measures in order to 
maintain and promote the licensing objectives.  

            

Tue 10:00 00:00 

            

Wed 10:00 00:00 State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 10:00 01:00 

            

Fri 10:00 01:30 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat 10:00 01:30 

            

Sun 10:00 00:00 

            

 

Page 24



G 
 

Performances of dance 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of dance take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 00:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Performances of dance will be provided on request from 
customers wishing to book the premise for private functions e.g. 
birthday parties or celebrations. Each event will be subjected to 
a risk assessment to determine the adequate measures in order 
to maintain and promote the licensing objectives.  
 

            

Tue 10:00 00:00 

            

Wed 10:00 00:00 State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 10:00 01:00 

            

Fri 10:00 01:30 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the performance of dance at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat 10:00 01:30 

            

Sun 10:00 00:00 

            

 

Page 25



H 
 

Anything of a similar 

description to that 

falling within (e), (f) or 

(g) 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 

providing 

      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 

outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 3)  

Indoors  

Mon 10:00 00:00 Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue 10:00 00:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Anything of similar will be provided on request from customers 
wishing to book the premise for private functions e.g. birthday 
parties or celebrations. Each event will be subjected to a risk 
assessment to determine the adequate measures in order to 
maintain and promote the licensing objectives.  
 

            

Wed 10:00 00:00 

            

Thur 10:00 01:00 State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 

description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 

guidance note 5) 

      
            

Fri 10:00 01:30 

            

Sat 
10:00 01:30 

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the entertainment of a similar description to that falling within 

(e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the column on the 

left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      
            

Sun 
10:00 00:00 

            

 

Page 26



  

I 
 

Late night refreshment 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the provision of late night refreshment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 23:00 00:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue 23:00 00:00 

            

Wed 23:00 00:00 State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 

refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 23:00 01:30 

            

Fri 23:00 02:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat 23:00 02:00 

            

Sun 23:00 00:00 

            

 

Page 27



J 
 

Supply of alcohol 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption 

– please tick (please read guidance note 8)   

 

On the 

premises 
 

Off the 

premises 
 

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 00:00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read 

guidance note 5) 

                  

Tue 10:00 00:00 

            

Wed 10:00 00:00 

            

Thur 10:00 01:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Fri 10:00 01:30 

            

Sat 10:00 01:30 

            

Sun 10:00 00:00 

            

 

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as 

designated premises supervisor   (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the 

checklist at the end of the form): 

 

Name 

Mr Paolo Luciano Di Tieri Cous 

Date of birth  

 

Address 

 
 

 

Postcode  

Personal licence number (if known) 

 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 

 

 

 

Page 28



 

K 

 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 

children (please read guidance note 9). 

N/A 

 

L 

 

Hours premises are 

open to the public 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon 09:00 00:00 

            

Tue 09:00 00:00 

            

Wed 09:00 00:00 

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be open 

to the public at different times from those listed in the column on 

the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

Thur 09:00 01:30 

            

Fri 09:00 02:00 

            

Sat 09:00 02:00 

            

Sun 09:00 00:00 

            

 

 

 

Page 29



M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 

 

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10) 

The standard practices listed below will be maintained at all times. All reasonable 
steps will be taken to ensure that the premises will have a positive impact upon the 
local environment and its residents at all times. 
The applicant will regularly provide appropriate training to their employees in 
connection with the sale/supply of alcohol including remedial retraining where 
required. 
Appropriate staff will be properly trained on action to be taken when the fire alarm is 
activated. 

 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

All incidents will be recorded in an incident logbook kept at the premises. 
Additionally, any incidents of crime and disorder will be reported to the Police.  
In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on 
the premises, the management will immediately ensure that: 
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called 
immediately; 
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to 
apprehend any identified suspects pending the arrival of the police; 
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to 
preserve any identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police; 
(d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all 
persons present on the premises at all times during operating hours. 
 
An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the 
police or an authorised officer, which will record: 
(a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue 
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party 
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons 
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
  
3) CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the 
premises is open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following 
criteria: 
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure 
that the system is working properly and that the date and time are correct. 
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will 
be kept and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request; 
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one 
day of business for any reason; 
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a 
clear, full length image of anyone entering; 
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any 
exterior part of the premises accessible to the public; 
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the 
premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised 
Council officers to view footage on request. 
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be 

Page 30



provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject 
to the Data Protection Act 2018) within 24 hours of any request. 

Appropriate staff will be properly trained on action to be taken when the fire alarm is 
activated.  
The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters , including the 
conditions of the premises licence , age restricted products and [if they are ever left 
in charge of the shop] the operation of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits 
from authorised officers . The licensee shall keep written records of training and 
instructions given to each member of staff , detailing the areas covered to include the 
Licensing Objectives , identifying persons under 25, making a challenge, acceptable 
proof of age & checking it, making & recording a refusal, avoiding conflict & 
responsible alcohol retailing. Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received and 
understood the training. All staff who work at the till will be trained for their role on 
induction and be given refresher training every six months.  The written training 
records kept for each staff member will be produced to police & authorised council 
officers on request. 

 

c) Public safety 

Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, 
H2O and CO2), fire blanket, internally illuminated fire exits signs, numerous smoke 
detectors and emergency lighting (see enclosed plan for details of locations). All 
appliances are inspected annually. 
 
All emergency exits shall be kept free from obstruction at all times. All building work, 
and the operation of the premises will be carried out in accordance with appropriate 
legislation. 

 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 

The applicant will endeavour to reduce any effects of light/sound pollution from the 
premises. 
The premises licence holder shall endeavour to eliminate or minimise any nuisance 
arising out of its licensable activities. In doing so the premises licence holder will 
work with enforcement authorities where any issues are identified. A complaints 
procedure will be maintained in order that local residents have a means of contact if 
necessary. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be 
publicly available at the times the premises is open. The telephone number is to be 
made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity. Trade waste agreement to 
be maintained. Notices will be displayed at exits asking patrons to disperse quietly 
and respect neighbours. 
 
Customers leaving the premise will comply with the company's dispersal policy.  
The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme . 
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation . 
(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification , such as passport or UK driving 
licence , or a holographically marked PASS scheme cards , will be accepted. 

 

 

e) The protection of children from harm 

Page 31



All refusals are to be entered into a refusals book, which is to be made available to 
the Police or Licensing Authority Council staff upon request. 
The licensee & all employees shall request accredited proof of age cards for 
example, the Connexions card and Citizen Card, new type of driving licences with 
photographs, a passport, an official identity card issued by HM Forces or by an EU 
country, bearing the photography and date of birth of bearer. 
A sign reminding customers that alcohol cannot be served to persons under the age 
of 18 shall be displayed on the premises.   

 

 

Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 

 

 

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. 

 

 

 I have enclosed the plan of the premises.  

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others 

where applicable. 
 

 I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated 

premises supervisor, if applicable. 
 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application.  

 

 

 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 

be rejected. 

 

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a 

limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I have 

included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom 

(please read note 15). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A 

PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO 

BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 

THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT 

LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE 

LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 

ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE 

SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE 

KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE 

EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.  

 

 

Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance 

note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  

 

 

 

Page 32



Declaration 

• [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 

partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I 

am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the 

entitlement to live and  work in the UK (or if I am subject to a condition 

preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 

licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I cease to 

be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

       

 

• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 

(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work 

relating to a licesable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her 

proof of  entitlement to work, if appropriate (please see note 15) 

    

 

Signature FSL Business Consultants 

Date 28/09/2021 

Capacity Authorised Agent 

 

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other 

authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please 

state in what capacity. 

 

Signature  

Date       

Capacity       

 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with 

this application (please read guidance note 14) 

FSL Business Consultants 
20 Adamson Road 

Post town London Postcode NW3 3HR 

Telephone number (if any)  

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 

 

 

 

Notes for Guidance 

 

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout 

and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where 

your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will 

be and its proximity to the premises. 

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Licensing Authority Representation 

Licensing Act 2003 

Application for a variation of a premises licence in respect of: 

Bocas, 178-180 St John Street EC1V 4JY 

Licensable activities and timings applied for are: 

Entertainments and alcohol (on & off) Sun-Wed 1000-midnight, Thu to 1am, Fri & Sat to 1.30am. 

Late Night Refreshment on & off Sun-Wed Midnight, Thu 1.30am, Fri & Sat 2am.  

The grounds for the representation are: 

• Public nuisance;

Licensing Policy Considerations 

Licensing Policies 5 and 6 Licensing Hours 

Licensing Policy 22 Noise Associated with Licensable Activities 

Issues of Concern 

The applicant has applied for operating hours, which are outside of the core policy hours for a 

restaurant or bar. Where representations are received from responsible authorities or other 

persons, the Licensing Authority may seek to restrict hours of opening where it is appropriate to 

promote the licensing objectives. 

When dealing with new and variation applications the Licensing Authority will give more favourable 

consideration to applications with the opening and closing times listed in the Policy, which would be 

Sunday to Thursday until 11pm and on Fridays and Saturdays until Midnight. 

This premises has a history of noise issues when it was previously a Simmons Bar and prior to that, 

The Well. The licence holders for Simmonds Bar were issued with a Noise Abatement Notice on 

12/4/2019. It was recommend that an acoustic survey be carried out and noise limits set to levels 

that were to the satisfaction of the Council. The licencees gave an undertaking in July 2019 to close 

until agreement had been reach with the Council. 

Subsequently the premises did not operate until after the applicants took possession. 

According to Council records, there has been one complaint to the Council’s ASB Reporting line 

received on 15/10/21, stating music noise had been causing a disturbance since 8/10/21. 

Noise nuisance has not been witnessed, as at the time of writing, officers have been unable to 

arrange access to the resident’s home.  

The applicant applied for Temporary Event Notices on 1 - 4/9/21, 21-24/10/21 and on 27-31/10/21. 

All from 1000 to 0200.  To date no complaints were received for those events. 

The licensing officer for the area and a police licensing officer met with the applicants on 19/10/21 

where the applicant stated the premises will be more of a food led operation rather than a bar.  

Appendix 2

Rep1

Page 36



Recommendations: 

If the Licensing Sub-Committee are minded to grant the application, the Licensing Authority suggest 

the following conditions:  

1. Alcohol shall only be available with a main table meal and there shall be no vertical drinking 

on the premises, save for up to eight customers awaiting a table in the ground floor bar 

area.  

2. That core Policy hours be applied to this licence - Sunday to Thursday until 11pm and on 

Fridays and Saturdays until Midnight. 

3. Recorded or live music or entertainment shall be at background level only on the ground 

floor. 

4. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby 

properties. 

5.  In the event of noise nuisance being established, the licensee shall appoint an acoustic 

consultant accredited by the Institute of Acoustics or the Association of Noise Consultants to 

install an entertainment noise control system and come to agreements with the Council 

regarding maximum levels of amplified sound at the premises. 

6. If the above licence condition is required, the agreed maximum levels of amplified sound hall 

be expressed on the premises licence. 

7. There shall be a written dispersal and noise management policy, a copy of which shall be 

kept on the premises and produced to an authorised officer upon request. 

 

The Licensing Authority recommends the Licensing Sub Committee take all representations and 

submissions by the applicants into account and give careful consideration to the possible impact on 

residents living nearby, bearing in mind any measures proposed by the applicants to minimise 

disturbance. 

 

 

Terrie Lane 

Licensing Manager 

Public Protection Division 

0207 527 3031 

licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 

27/10/2021 

Page 37

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


Paolo Bars Ltd., 
c/o FSL Business Consultants, 
20 Adamson Road, 
London NW3 3HR, 

Islington Police Licensing Team, 
Islington Police Station, 
Tolpuddle Street, 
Islington, 
London N1 0YY 

Telephone: 07919547416 

Our ref: WK/200088106 

20th October 2021 

Dear All, 

PREMISES – PAOLO BARS LTD T/A BOCAS, 178-180 ST JOHN STREET, 
CLERKENWELL, ISLINGTON, LONDON EC1V 4JY 

It was nice to meet with you yesterday when I visited with Carol Jones from Islington 
Council to get more details from you in person to better understand the application 
and fill in the areas of uncertainty for your new premises licence application regarding 
the above premises where the previous licence lapsed last year [LN/5106-161219] . 
As this previous licence was a historic and aged document for Police matters last 
used by a pub chain I have not considered many of the conditions there appropriate 
for you and your proposed operation in this representation. 

Please accept this e-mail as my initial representation. 

As you will be aware, police hold responsibility for ensuring that with any application 
the licensing objectives are promoted, supported and adhered to, and that proposals 
for premises licences do not invite any heightened risk or likelihood of crime, disorder 
or anti-social behaviour which should always be prevented wherever possible. 

Thank you for your initial and current entries under heading M – promoting the 
licensing objectives. Any representations I would make under these entries already 
offered will be minor and will only relate to proposed wording of licence conditions 
and slight amendments to CCTV etc. Now there is more detail and clarity re your 
proposed operation there however some of the conditions supplied in my email of 
12/08/21 but not included in the application remain to be covered I feel now that I 
have visited. I have recorded that you have said you are more of a food led 
establishment or restaurant rather than the restaurant/bar given on the application 
form in part 3. 

Rep 2

Page 38



I have recorded that you have recently submitted a pavement licence for the 7 tables 
of 4 you hope to be able to place outside on the street and have undertaken to abide 
by any terminal hour given for their use if granted. 
  
To that end there are 15 conditions [including delivery conditions after our visit] which 
I deem appropriate in the circumstances that I would expect to see included in your 
application for an alcohol licence for this premises. 
 
  
These conditions should not affect the intended use or operating policy I believe and 
should be considered as good practice in line with police expectations and the 
Statement of Licensing Policy 2018-2022 as published by Islington Council on their 
own website if you aren’t already familiar with it: 
 
1) In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed 
on the premises, the management will immediately ensure that: 
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called 
immediately; 
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to 
apprehend any identified suspects pending the arrival of the police;  
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to 
preserve any identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police;  
(d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all 
persons present on the premises at all times during operating hours. 
  
2) An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the 
police or an authorised officer, which will record: 
(a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue 
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party 
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons  
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
  
3) CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the 
premises is open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following 
criteria:  
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure 
that the system is working properly and that the date and time are correct.  
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will 
be kept and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request; 
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one 
day of business for any reason; 
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a 
clear, full length image of anyone entering; 
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any 
exterior part of the premises accessible to the public; 
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the 
premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised 
Council officers to view footage on request. 
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be 
provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject 
to the Data Protection Act 2018) within 24 hours of any request . 

Page 39



(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed 
at the premises. 

4) The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme. 
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation. 
(b) Only physical production of suitable forms of photographic identification, such as 
passport or UK driving licence, or a holographically marked PASS scheme cards, will 
be accepted . A screenshot or digital document copy will not be sufficient. 

5) The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. 
Such staff and security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority 
and the Police. The need for door supervisors will be assessed by way of written and 
recorded risk assessment and cognisance will be taken of any police advice. 

6) “Chelsea Hooks” or similar bag retention devices are to be provided on the 
underside of tables and counters where customers might reasonably be expected to 
otherwise place their bags on the floor. 

7) The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including 
the conditions of the premises licence, age restricted products and [if they are ever 
left in charge of the shop] the operation of the CCTV system and how to deal with 
visits from authorised officers. The licensee shall keep written records of training and 
instructions given to each member of staff , detailing the areas covered to include the 
Licensing Objectives ,  identifying persons under 25, making a challenge, acceptable 
proof of age & checking it, making & recording a refusal, avoiding conflict & 
responsible alcohol retailing. Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received and 
understood the training. All staff who work at the till will be trained for their role on 
induction and be given refresher training every six months.  The written training 
records kept for each staff member will be produced to police & authorised council 
officers on request.   

8) The premises licence holder shall endeavour to eliminate or minimise any 
nuisance arising out of its licensable activities. In doing so the premises licence 
holder will work with enforcement authorities where any issues are identified. A 
complaints procedure will be maintained in order that local residents have a means of 
contact if necessary. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises 
shall be publically available at the times the premises is open. The telephone number 
is to be made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity. 
 
9) The supply of alcohol shall be ancillary to a table meal and shall be supplied to 
seated customers at table by waiter/waitress. There will be no vertical drinking at the 
premises. 
 
10) The premises shall only operate as a restaurant which provides food in the form 
of substantial meals that are prepared on the premises. There will always be the 
provision of food available whenever alcohol is being served. Soft/non-intoxicating 
drinks will be available at all times when the premises is open for licensable activities. 

11) Regarding all off sales: alcohol is only to be sold for consumption off the 
premises where it is purchased as an ancillary to food or when served to seated 
customers at tables outside the premises within the hours granted by a current valid 
pavement or tables and chairs licence in place. It will also be allowed for part finished 
bottles of wine to be re-sealed and taken home by customers after their meal. 

12) Regarding any off sales for delivery, made by way of telephone/internet orders, 
the following will be adhered to : 
(a) No alcohol delivery unless accompanying the purchase of food. Page 40



(b) No more than four beers/ciders or a 750 ml bottle of wine per individual order. 
(c) Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including 
underage sales , sales to a person who is drunk , obtaining alcohol for a child or a 
person who is drunk and delivering alcohol to someone under the age of 18 . 
(d) Any person taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the premises 
licence holder will in for all customers that proof of age by way of photographic 
driving licence, passport or a form of identification with the PASS hologram will be 
required at point of delivery before alcohol is supplied. 

12a) The licensee shall ensure that any delivery service employed to facilitate the 
delivery of alcohol , as an ancillary to a food order , has an adequate proof of age 
scheme in place , such as Challenge 25 , to be undertaken at the point of delivery to any 
customer .The licensee shall practice best endeavours to ensure that no internal 
combustion engine vehicles are used for deliveries from the premises .If internal 
combustion engine vehicle are used for deliveries, the licensee shall ensure that drivers 
do not park or loiter in the vicinity of residential premises .The premises will operate a no 
idling policy . 

12b) Any website from which customers can order food and drink to be delivered to a 
home address will contain a message to the effect that alcoholic products can only 
be purchased by persons who are over the age of 18 years, and that identification 
will be requested when the alcohol is delivered. 

13) The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the 
premises do so in in an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to ensure 
that there is no public nuisance or obstruction of the public highway. A maximum of 6 
smokers shall be permitted to stand outside the frontage at any one time. 

14) The premises shall not be hired out to any third party 
 
15) The premises to operate a zero tolerance policy to drugs. 

I have noted that the application is sited within the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Policy 
Area and is currently for alcohol supply timings  outside of the current Islington 
Council framework hours [Licensing policy 6 p.24 of guidance] that Police would 
support for restaurants on Sun-Thurs until 2300 hrs [application currently stands at 
midnight Mon-Wed and until 0100 on Thurs] and Fri-Sat until midnight [application 
currently stands at 0130 the following morning on both days] without supporting 
documentation , undertakings or mitigation to date re point 30 on page 14 of the 
Licensing Policy . 
I have also noted your proposed closing times of midnight Sun-Weds, 0130 the 
following morning for Thurs and 0200 the following mornings for Fri and Sat . 

If after discussion you amend these applied for hours down to the framework hours 
which Police could support please advise otherwise I will assume they will remain as 
per the application. 

I hope that you are happy with the proposed Police conditions and the wordings 
given after the visit. 
  
I will be in liaison with Carol Jones, who I have copied in so that she is aware of the 
initial police representations. I’m happy to defer to Carol’s knowledge and experience 
or other relevant Council officers if they have alternative preferred deliveries wording 
condition/s. I will also make the usual Licensing Officer for the area aware who is 
Natasha  O’Donoghue . 
  Page 41



Please reply by e-mail with your agreement to these police initial representation 
should that be your wish once you have considered them and sought any advice or 
clarification that you wish. 
  
I would of course be very happy to further engage and discuss or clarify any queries 
or reservations you may have. 
  
This application is obviously time sensitive so a prompt response would be 
appreciated. The date for last representations is 28/10/21 [Thursday]. 
  
I look forward to your response. 
  
Kind Regards, 
  
Tim 

 

Tim Livermore| Constable | Islington Borough – Licensing Team 

Address Islington Police Station, 2 Tolpuddle Street , Islington , London N1 0YY 

T07919547416 – Licensing Team mobile 

Email Tim.J.Livermore@met.police.uk  

 

Licensing Team mailbox - Email CNMailbox-.IslingtonPoliceLicensingTeam@met.police.uk 

 

Protective Marking: Treat all mail as OFFICIAL unless otherwise stated 

 

 

 

 

Click here to see what we are doing for you @MPSIslington 

 

Click here to find contact details for your local Neighbourhood Team 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 42



From: Smedley, Louise
To: licensing@fslconsultants.com
Cc: Licensing
Subject: Premises Licence Application
Date: 12 October 2021 17:16:19

Good Afternoon,
I am in receipt of your application for a new premises licence for 178-180 St John Street,
Islington, London
I would like to take this opportunity to invite you add a condition to the licence to include a
Challenge 25 policy in order to prevent to sale of alcohol to children.
It is part of our licensing policy that we expect applicants and premises licence holders to
implement appropriate measures (including Challenge 25) to prevent the sale of alcohol to
children, including proxy sales when adults buy alcohol for children.
The proposed Trading Standards conditions are as follows:

The licensee shall adopt a ‘Challenge 25’ policy and promote it through the prominent
display of posters.
The licensee shall put arrangements in place to ensure that before serving alcohol to
persons they believe to be less than 25, staff ask to see accredited proof of age: that is,
proof of age cards carrying the ‘PASS’ logo (and no others), a Passport, or UK Driving
Licence bearing the photograph and date of birth of the bearer.
The licensee shall ensure that staff are trained about age restricted products and ensure
that they sign to confirm that they have understood the training. The licensee shall keep
records of training and instructions given to staff, detailing the areas covered, and make
them available for inspection upon request by the licensing team, police or trading
standards.
The licensee shall require staff to note any refusals to sell to young people in a refusals
log. The refusals log shall be made available for inspection upon request by the licensing
team, police or trading standards.

Further information on the Challenge 25 policy can be found using the following link:
http://rasg.org.uk/about/
Please feel free to contact me using the details below should you have any further questions
regarding this matter.
Regards,
Louise Smedley (she / her)
Principal Trading Standards Officer
Trading Standards
Public Protection and Regulatory Services
Islington Council
222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR
Tel: 0207 527 2235
Mobile: 07803 576 465
Email: Louise.Smedley@islington.gov.uk
Alternative contact:
Trading Standards Duty Officer: 0207 527 4028
Trading.Standards@islington.gov.uk

Rep 3

Page 43

mailto:Louise.Smedley@islington.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@fslconsultants.com
mailto:Licensing@islington.gov.uk
http://rasg.org.uk/about/
mailto:Louise.Smedley@islington.gov.uk
mailto:Trading.Standards@islington.gov.uk


Page 3 of 4 

Licensing Act 2003 representation 

Premises Name and address: Boca’s, 

178-180 St John Street, Islington, London

Your Name: 

Interest: Residents 

Your Address: 

Email: 

Telephone  

Please comment on the licensing objectives below relevant to your concerns or observations, 
you may also wish to include suggestions how your concerns could be addressed: 

Public Nuisance 

While we are supportive of enabling recovery of the hospitality sector in a post pandemic scenario, 
we have serious concerns that the proposed opening times and contemplated activities may 
significantly increase risks of public nuisance (as detailed in Licensing Policy 21 of the Statement 
of Licensing Policy 2018-2022) for residents of the area. 

Our flat is located  of the premises (  St John Street) for which the new license is 
required and, unfortunately, suffers from poor insulation from street noise. Noting that the 
application contemplates late opening times, sales of alcohol, live and recorded music until late 
night, we fear that increased noise, fuelled by the presence of potentially intoxicated individuals, 
may create disturbance to our sleep, with severe implications for our quality of life and overall 
wellbeing in the neighbourhood. In addition, the document does not specify whether conditions for 
preventing excessive noise in the area (such as a requirement for insulation when music is played) 
are in place. 

While we are confident that the licensees will ensure measures to minimize public nuisance for 
residents of the area and would welcome a Council decision to grant the license, we suggest that 
opening times are limited to midnight, at the latest, during weekends and 11 pm during weekdays. 

Crime and Disorder 

We are confident that licensees will put in place measures to prevent risks of increased crime and 
disorder in the area. In parallel, we believe that earlier closing times - which will likely limit the 
presence of intoxicated individuals in the area late at night- will facilitate prevention of such risks. 

Protection of Children from Harm 

We are confident that licensees will put in place appropriate policies to safeguard children, in 
compliance with Licensing Policies 27 and 28 of the Statement of Licensing Policy 2018-2022. 

Public Safety 

We are confident that licensees will put in place measures to prevent risks to public safety in the 
area. In parallel, we believe that earlier closing times will facilitate prevention of such risks. 

It is not uncommon to have unaccompanied women from these households return home late at 
night from work. Noting that, given the location of our flat, it is unavoidable to walk in front of the 

Rep 4

Page 44



 Page 4 of 4 

premises for which the new license is required, it would be highly preferrable to minimize the 
presence of intoxicated individuals in the street late at night. 

 

 

I wish my identity to be kept anonymous Yes  

We will treat representations as anonymous where there is a genuine reason to do so; if you 
wish your name and address details to be withheld then please explain the reason: 

 

No specific concern but, in general, we would like to ensure that potential confrontations with 
applicants are avoided.  

Copies of this representation will be sent to the applicant, or their agent/solicitor, including 
name and address details (but other personal contact information such as telephone numbers 
and email addresses will be removed) unless you have specifically requested anonymity.  
Copies of this representation will be included in a report that will be available to the public and 
will be published on the internet; however the published on-line version of the report will have 
name and address details removed.   

 

Signature_  

Date 15 October 2021______________________________________ 

Please ensure name and address details completed above 

Return to:    Licensing Service      
London Borough of Islington 
3rd Floor 
222 Upper Street 
London N1 1XR  

or send by email to:  licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 

Page 45



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Application for new licence- Bocas- 178-180 St John Street. Your Ref WK/200088106
Date: 18 October 2021 10:51:06

[External]
Dear Licensing Service 

This email is my formal representation regarding the application for a new licence at the
above premises.

Introduction

I have lived on St John Street for over 20 years, so I have a lot of experience of restaurants
and bars in the local area and how and why they have been successful (or not). I appreciate
that opening a new business in the current climate presents additional challenges and it is
important to me that we have a varied and vibrant neighbourhood. I do not want it to be
overrun by estate agents and showrooms.

However, I have also experienced the results that long licensing hours and the high levels
of intoxication that follow and have seen first hand how this harms a predominately
residential neighbourhood. I live very close to the new premises (I live at 

 and have had some bad experiences with Darbuka (now a Pret A Manger) and more
recently Simmons Wine Bar which has gone into liquidation.

Licensing Objectives and Objections

My comments below fall under the separate headings of (1) the prevention of crime and
disorder and (2) the prevention of public nuisance.

I understand that, quite apart from the necessity of needing a brand new licence (as the
previous licence has lapsed) the pertinent aspects of the new application are in relation to :

- opening hours extended to as late as 2am over the weekend

- a licence for live music, recorded music and dancing which would be restricted to the
basement area to as late as 1.30am

- the supply of late night refreshments until 2am

- potentially an application for a pavement licence to permit eating and drinking outside
the premises- details not specified

I object to all of these additional uses on the grounds that they are highly likely to create a
public nuisance and disorder. These objections are not made lightly, but based upon past
experience.

1. It is important to note that the new premises, Bocas, isn’t a full service restaurant but
merely a tapas bar as demonstrated by the menu on their website. In this respect it can be
distinguished from the nearby Peasant pub and restaurant and The Well (which occupied
the same premises as Bocas prior to Simmons). The success of these 2 local establishments
is because they are places where people would come primarily for the food and spend the

Rep 5

Page 46



Page 47



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Re 178-180 St John St Licence Application
Date: 12 October 2021 11:47:36

[External]
Dear Sirs,

I wish to register my concern regarding the requested opening hours for the above
premises.

My main reservations relate to the second of the four licensing objectives, namely the
Prevention of Public Nuisance.

I am a resident living very close to the Tapas Bar and will therefore be directly impacted
adversely should the extended licence be granted.

Having lived in the area for 20 years, I know first hand the disruption caused by late night
closures. This is predominantly a residential area and as the only bar/restaurant in the
immediate vicinity , it will have a disproportionate effect on the families and residents
living around the venue.

Darbucka (now Pret) and Simmons Wine Bar , despite their best efforts could not control
their customers, many of whom had been drinking, as they vacated the premises. The noise
reverberates around the streets and bounces off the buildings and to think that this would
happen after midnight on some evenings up to 2.00am at the weekend is just
unimaginable.Not to overstate the point, people’s mental health will suffer a detriment.

I believe that a 11.30 midweek curfew with a midnight curfew at the weekends is an
acceptable compromise. I also believe that there should be no tables permitted outside after
10.30 ( as was the case with Simmons, I recall?).

I do want the operation to succeed as they have clearly worked hard to spruce the place up
but I feel very strongly that this cannot be to the detriment of the poor, suffering
neighbours.

Please feel free to contact me if you require any clarification of the points I have raised,

Many thanks

Rep 6

Page 48



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Licensing application 178-180 St. John street Clerkenwell
Date: 06 October 2021 19:13:11

[External]

Dear Islington licensing,

I wish to complain that the licensing hours proposed are unacceptable in a residential area. The previous
occupants of 178-180 attracted very undesirable people to the area creating appalling noise and drunken
behaviour late at night. Licensing hours should be until 11 pm with an extension to 12 on a Friday and Saturday.
In addition this should be a restaurant license and not a drinking only license. There are residential flats all
around who would value a restaurant but cannot be expected to live with hoards of drunken revellers from out
of town previously seen at this address, this is not shoreditch or Smithfield. Finally a dance license unless only
Spanish or argentine dancers would be the final straw eg a disco and or strippers as per the previous occupants.

Rep 7

Page 49



From:
Licensing

Subject: 178-180 St John Street - Bocas
Date: 08 October 2021 16:24:58

[External]
Premises name and address: 178-180 St John Street, Islington, London

My name: 

Interest: resident

My address: 

Grounds of objection to the new licence application: the prevention of public nuisance

Basis of objection:

I note that the premises are in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area. I understand from your
website that "applications for the grant or variation of premises licences or club premises
certificates which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused
following the receipt of representations."

There is no doubt, in my mind, that this application will add to the existing cumulative impact,
as it contains proposals for later hours, more live music, later outside drinking, and less
supervision than the licence held by the previous tenants of the premises (Simmonds Wine
Bar).

If I understand the Cumulative Impact Area guidelines properly, this licence should not be
any more permissive than the previous licence at these premises.

Any noise, especially in the evening, carries all around this canyon-like area of St. John Street.

178, St. John Street is completely surrounded by residential properties in close proximity.

The current application looks to be able to serve alcohol inside and outside the premises until
between midnight (Sunday-Wednesday), 01.00 (Thursdays) and 01.30 (Friday and Saturday).
Given the noise, especially when people leave, it would seem appropriate in a heavily
residential area for (a) overall opening hours to not go beyond midnight and (b) outside
consumption to cease at, say, 10pm (the latter was, I think, part of the previous licence at this
address). There should also be a requirement on the licensee to have people to enforce this
requirement. (The previous licensee had security people outside who blatantly enforced nothing
on the public nuisance front.)

The current application has requested to allow live or recorded music for the same hours as
serving alcohol. In my view, live music, which is normally very loud, should be restricted to
finishing at 10pm at the latest. And there should be other measures to restrict the public
nuisance of all music after 10pm - for example, requirements to keep windows and doors shut.

Rep 8

Page 50



178 St John Street has a great deal of floor to ceiling retractable windows - if these are left
open, there is no barrier to all the noise of the bar circulating all around this residential area.

It would also help to restrict live music and dancing to the lower floor - basement - of the
premises, as noise from the ground floor so easily escapes and creates a nuisance to
surrounding properties.

Overall, the terms of any eventual licence should reflect the fact that all the neighbouring
buildings are almost all residential and the nuisance which would be inflicted on the
inhabitants of those flats by allowing this application through on (anything like) the terms
requested.

Having lived in St John Street for over 20 years, I am keen for the new venture at 178, St
John Street to be a success, but the terms of this proposed licence would make life
intolerable for the neighbours of the premises.

I do not require my identity to remain anonymous.

Page 51



Rep 9

Page 52



Page 53



Rep 10

Page 54



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Premises 178-180 St John Street Islington Objection
Date: 11 October 2021 09:38:41

[External]
Premises name and address: 178-180 St John Street, Islington, London
My name: 
Interest:  resident
My address: 

Grounds of objection to the new licence application: the prevention of public nuisance
Basis of objection:
I note that the premises are in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area. I understand from your
website that "applications for the grant or variation of premises licences or club premises
certificates which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused
following the receipt of representations."
There is no doubt, in my mind, that this application will add to the existing cumulative impact, as
it contains proposals for later hours, more live music, later outside drinking, and less supervision
than the licence held by the previous tenants of the premises (Simmonds Wine Bar).
If I understand the Cumulative Impact Area guidelines properly, this licence should not be any
more permissive than the previous licence at these premises.
Any noise, especially in the evening, carries all around this canyon-like area of St. John Street.
178, St. John Street is completely surrounded by residential properties in close proximity.
The current application looks to be able to serve alcohol inside and outside the premises until
between midnight (Sunday-Wednesday), 01.00 (Thursdays) and 01.30 (Friday and Saturday).
Given the noise, especially when people leave, it would seem appropriate in a heavily residential
area for (a) overall opening hours to not go beyond midnight and (b) outside consumption to
cease at, say, 10pm (the latter was, I think, part of the previous licence at this address). There
should also be a requirement on the licensee to have people to enforce this requirement. (The
previous licensee had security people outside who blatantly enforced nothing on the public
nuisance front.)
The current application has requested to allow live or recorded music for the same hours as
serving alcohol. In my view, live music, which is normally very loud, should be restricted to
finishing at 10pm at the latest. And there should be other measures to restrict the public
nuisance of all music after 10pm - for example, requirements to keep windows and doors shut.
178 St John Street has a great deal of floor to ceiling retractable windows - if these are left open,
there is no barrier to all the noise of the bar circulating all around this residential area.
It would also help to restrict live music and dancing to the lower floor - basement - of the
premises, as noise from the ground floor so easily escapes and creates a nuisance to surrounding
properties.
Overall, the terms of any eventual licence should reflect the fact that all the neighbouring
buildings are almost all residential and the nuisance which would be inflicted on the inhabitants
of those flats by allowing this application through on (anything like) the terms requested.
Having lived in St John Street for over 10 years, I am keen for the new venture at 178, St

Rep 11

Page 55



John Street to be a success, but the terms of this proposed licence would make life intolerable
for the neighbours of the premises.
I do not require my identity to remain anonymous.
Kind Regards

Page 56



Rep 12

Page 57



Rep 13

Page 58



Page 59



Rep 14

Page 60



1. See items 5 and 6 above
2. When Simmons was open I heard a woman being harassed and was able to see her

being taken off down the street drunk, barely able to walk by two men she clearly
did not know. Luckily the someone at the bar stepped in - again to repeat a licence
for this late is unnecessary for a restaurant, so too are opening hours until 2am it is
dangerous with no public transport at this time

3. Increased numbers of people selling and attempting to sell drugs in the area also
took place when there was late night drinking - the paraphernalia left behind from
use including needles, laughing gas canisters, is not something I want outside my
apartment

Protection of children

1. The business has the only pedestrian crossing nearby outside of it, if drinking is
happening late into the night and spilling over onto the pavement as did before the
crossing becomes unusable.

2. See item 5 under public nuisance - this is a residential area with many schools and
families with children living on the street and in the local surrounding spot. Having
vomit, drug paraphernalia, litter everywhere not to mention being able to see and
hear female harassment, having the entrance to your home blocked by people
drinking / smoking / urinating / having sex is not something that seems safe for
children

Public safety 

1. All items above on access to the pedestrian crossing
2. All items above regarding safety for women and being harassed
3. All items above in being able to access the entrance to residential buildings without

them being blocked

I wish my identity to be kept anonymous. My reason is that previously Simmons tried to
get in touch with all local residents and persuade them to change their mind about the
licencing arrangements. There were also local groups of residents who tried to get in touch
with others, both those who agreed and disagreed to try and pressure people into
supporting either way. I do not wish to be contacted by the business or by other local
residents, I would like to feel safe in my own home.

Thank you,

Page 61



Rep 15

Page 62



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: 178-180 St John Street Licence Application
Date: 24 October 2021 19:29:43

[External]
Dear Sir/ Madam,

I'm writing as a resident of  in reference to the licence application of
Paolo Bars. I'd like to state my objection to this application. The bar is located in a
residential area and history (from a bar once located 5 meters from Paolo's location) shows
that late night openings result in drunk crowds congregating, playing loud music, smoking
drugs and fighting not only around the bar but also in the streets close by, particularly
Agdon street. This street is next to my .

The current licence application for opening beyond 11pm is excessive. Friday's and
Saturday's opening hours until 1:30 are also excessive. Particularly excessive though is the
application to open on a Thursday night until 1:30am. This is entirely unreasonable and I
would ask that this application is turned down.

I've lived in areas previously where opening hours were limited to 11pm on weekdays and
midnight on weekends. I would be supportive of an application limited to those hours and
nothing more.

Thanks,

Rep 16

Page 63



Rep 17

Page 64



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: WK/200088106
Date: 25 October 2021 15:23:15

[External]

Dear Islington Licensing,

My name is  and I am the  Clerkenwell. I
wanted to report to you that the license that the bar Bocas( same building, downstairs) received doesn't suit the
house or the environment of it. I want to comment on it, with hope for help from your side.

I want to refer to prevention of public nuisance that is coming from this bar. The sale of alcohol is too loud for
1:30 am on the weekend or even 12 during the weekdays. For example multiple pubs  the exmouth market have
to shut down early and close their doors( no live music). This street is very lively and even there the times are
arranged and the noise is managed. Around 178-180 St John Street it is very residential and quite, that’s why I
moved here.
I would also expect the place to get isolated professionally, what they didn’t.
Also there are big ventilators fixed on the back side of the building that make my walls vibrate constantly. It
feels that I am living in a microwave. This needs to be fixed and looked after too, as I think the mechanical
measures weren’t respected.

It is not possible to play live music to as it is extremely loud. Everyone in that building is a professional and
works often long hours. Since two weeks I am not able to sleep and that is extremely hurtful for my mental
health.

As there are four other tenants, we want to create a joint complaint about that venue and sort things out fast as
this is really disturbing our life and well-being.

Kind regards,

Rep 18

Page 65



Rep 19

Page 66



Rep 20

Page 67



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Objections to WK/200088106 178-180 St John St
Date: 26 October 2021 15:55:20

[External]
Hello , I am writing as owner of  to make objections to
the late hours of the application made by the premises (Bocas) below my flat for the sale of
alcohol, live/recorded music / performance of dance and provision of late night refreshment .(
Your ref ; WK/200088106)
My objections to their application for late opening and sale of alcohol/ food and playing of music
ranging from midnight until 2 am , reflect my concerns about disorderly and anti -social
behaviour by customers late at night as well as the impact of noise.
I understand the owners intend to have tables/ heaters outside on the pavement below 
which will encourage loud noise and disturbance to the surrounding residential area until the
early hours of the morning every night of the week if their application is successful.
Also our   has in the past been blocked by
customers of the previous incumbent (Simmons) who were drunk, left wheelie suitcases in front
of it , vomited and on a couple of occasions somehow made their way through our front door
into the communal hallway. I am not suggesting this happens all the time but the later into the
night they can supply alcohol / remain open, the stronger the likelihood for drunken behaviour
to lead to this happening all over again and all the distress that causes. People congregating to
smoke outside on the pavement also causes problems and is likely to exacerbate the later into
the night they are open.
In addition, the instructions for council refuse collection for the flats above 178/180 St John st is
to leave non – recyclable and recyclable waste bagged and next to our entrance door on the
pavement to await collection which can easily be accidentally tripped over/ torn by customers
drinking / smoking on the pavement adjacent to it causing mess and attracting vermin . This was
an issue with the previous owners Simmons Bar and risks to be an issue again with late night
drinkers/ smokers.
Of course I appreciate that the new owners need to make it a going concern and I wish them
well in that, but I do urgently request that the hours permitted for them to remain open are
curtailed to 11 pm in the working week and midnight at weekends for the sake of the
surrounding residents. This is primarily a residential area and there is little demand / traffic for a
place to offer food/ alcohol into the early hours of the morning whether inside or served on the
pavement. The relatively short tenure of the previous incumbent Simmons demonstrates this
and the battle with them due to the anti- social behaviour of their customers which was
heroically underpinned by Islington Council’s robust response is an example none of us want
repeated.
Therefore I respectfully request that the opening hours are limited to 11 pm on work days and
midnight at weekends and the same for the times they are allowed to serve food/ alcohol
outside and play music.
Thank you for your consideration of my request.
Yours sincerely,

Rep 21

Page 68



Rep 22

Page 69



Rep 23

Page 70



business since 14 October and has apparently been serving customers and selling
alcohol since that date. I do not understand how this is permissible if the licence is
pending (as indicated on the Council's website). If that is permissible under some
sort of temporary licence then I of course do not rely on this point. However, if it is
not permissible, then it may suggest a cavalier approach to the regulatory and
legal environment in which the applicant is supposed to operating.

(2) The prevention of public nuisance

The risk of public nuisance is clear and substantial for the following reasons:

(1) The premises operate outside tables and has retractable awnings (see
attached photograph). The applicant also uses some sort of heating devices to
encourage people to sit outside in all weathers. So it is particularly concerning that
they wish to serve alcohol inside and outside the premises until 01:30 Friday and
Saturday and until 01:00 Thursday and midnight at other times.

The noise from people sitting outside and leaving is considerable (I say this from
the experience of the previous licence holder). The street is fairly narrow, and
therefore funnels the noise upwards and into Compton St. The area is
predominantly residential, not just on St John St itself, but in particular Compton
Street.

(2) The glass frontage on both sides can be opened to create a unified
indoor/outdoor space. The previous licence holder used to do this in the warmer
months (i.e. increasingly given the ever milder climate in London). The impact of
this is that any music or dancing as well as ordinary noise from inside the
premises is not in any way contained and the situation will be intolerable. It means
in effect that if the hours sought are granted it will not be possible to sleep until
after the premises have closed and its patrons have dispersed.

The presence of security staff (if indeed the applicant intends to provide any) will
not ameliorate this risk.

On this point, as I recall, the previous licence holder provided local residents with
their telephone number to call them in the event there was too much noise. The
current applicant has, so far as I am aware, not communicated with local residents
at all, which is hardly an encouraging sign for the future.

The terms of any licence should reflect the fact that all the neighbouring buildings
are occupied by flats above ground level and clearly considerable nuisance will be
inflicted on the inhabitants of those flats if this application is permitted on anything
like the terms requested.

(3) The protection of children from harm

The proposed licence terms plainly present a risk that the inhabitants of any of the
surrounding flats that they will not be able to sleep until very late into the night.
That will have a particularly deleterious effect on any children (and their health)
living in those flats.

Thank you in advance for considering these representations.

Page 71



Kind regards 

Page 72



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Objection to Licensing Application for 178-180 St. John Street
Date: 28 October 2021 12:48:09

[External]
I am a local resident and wish to object to the subject licensing application.
I am concerned that public drunkenness will return to the venue after Simmons deplorable
behaviour.
I object to the hours requested in the licence as the premises are in an otherwise quiet and
residential neighbourhood.
I respectfully ask that the licensing committee ensure closure by 11pm every night and that a
clear and monitored dispersal procedure is in effect.
I also request that no noise emanates from the premises.

Rep 24

Page 73



Rep 25

Page 74



Rep 26

Page 75



Egg. The Premises should cease selling alcohol by 2300 any night of the week, and clear
and monitored dispersal procedures and no noise of any kind to emanate from the
premises. If the Committee was minded to allow an extension on a Thursday or Friday or
other night that should not extend beyond 2400 and door staff would be essential outside at
all times until all patrons have left and been dispersed.

Yours sincerely

Page 76



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Licensing application - representation against the application
Date: 28 October 2021 21:58:33

[External]
Hi,

I would like to make a representation against the application of Paolo Bars Ltd located on 178-
180 St John Street, EC1V 4JY for a license for recorded music/performance/dancing/live
music/alcohol/food from 10am to midnight Sunday-Wednesday, Thursday 10am to 1:30am,
Friday/Saturday from 10am to 2am.

I refer to the (i)Prevention of public nuisance, (ii) the Prevention of crime and disorder and
(iii)Public Safety.

I live . I am really
concerned about

- The noise from music and customers bar inside and outside the bar
- The disorder customers could cause in the street at night especially after alcohol and
dancing
- The safety as customers could block the pavement (road and sidewalk).

I would like also to add that the sound proofing of the building is very poor and it is not liveable
with loud music until late at night added to people going in and out in the middle of the night,
screaming, singing and talking loud. Besides, if the bar is to close at 2am the noise won’t stop at
2am. On the top of it and from my perspective, allowing this license would jeopardize the health
of residents of the building  by preventing them to sleep or relax or even work.
With the pandemic we are working more and more from home. When the bar opened the music
was so loud that I could not even watch a movie or listen to music in . I had no other
choice but to leave my flat which is my home and returning after the closure.

My neighbour and I came to talk with the manager of the bar to work on a solution. This is now
better because he relocated the speaker, cancel all live music events and agreed to close the
kitchen around 10pm and the premise around midnight. He told us he would reach the licensing
officer to amend his application for another license but in case he did not I allow myself this
email as today is the deadline according to the notice I saw on the bar window and because as
abovementioned I am very concerned about this license so I cannot stay silent.

Thank you very much for your consideration

Rep 27

Page 77



LICENSING ACT 2003: 
COMMENTS ON  New Licence Application for 

178-180 St. John Street, EC1V 4JY

I wish to comment on the above application, and provide my comments under the 
following headings, as requested.  

However, I would first like to point out basic inconsistencies between their new 
licence application and, their website (and what is happening in practice). They call 
themselves “BOCAS RESTAURANT, BAR & JAZZ CLUB” aiming to provide the “BEST 
JAZZ IN OUR DOWNSTAIRS CLUB”. This has nothing to do with any private party or 
special event as mentioned in their licence application (see the reviews on Google 
commenting on the live music). I have not heard any music, so clearly this is confined 
to the basement bar and I have no objection at all to this happening and will visit 
myself in the near future. Neighbours have visited and made positive comments. If 
they stay like this, I have no problem, and it would be a great improvement on 
Simmonds, the previous occupant of the site. 

However, this inconsistency does lead me to question the veracity of the overall 
application. I would still oppose any extension of their licence until these matters 
have been clarified.  

1. PUBLIC NUISANCE Local residents have long experience of noisy local
bars, particularly in the premises currently used by Pret a Manger at 182 St.
John Street. Although premises were vacated at 01.00-01.30hrs, customers
would then congregate at the junction between Agdon and Compton Streets
where cars had been parked and for up to two hours we would hear
“revving” of car motors and the playing of loud music. Conversations were
easible at high volume to cope with the music. Fights occasionally occurred,
and the area was also serviced by drug dealers. My overlooks this
junction and this period was misery for me. I think the problem was even
worse for our neighbours in the parts of  who also
overlook this area. We do need to be absolutely sure that these problems do
not recur in this residential area

. 
2. CRIME AND DISORDER I have already mentioned the drug dealing and

fights.

Rep 28

Page 78



3. PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM There are large numbers of
children living in the neighbourhood who would be exposed to the noise and
general disorder at a time when they should be sleeping.

4. PUBLIC SAFETY People trying to reason with the crowds on occasions
experienced threatening behaviour.

27th October 2021 

Page 79



Re

Page 80



Page 81



Bocas – 178-180 St John Street, Clerkenwell 

Bocas is an Argentinian & Spanish Tapas bar that aims to bring the traditional flavors and 
experience of Argentina to the local community of Clerkenwell. 
Tapas bars in Argentina form a fundamental part of the local community as a place for locals 
to meet, eat, drink and enjoy entertainment together. This style of local hangout can be 
found on nearly every corner of Spain and Argentina and we hope that we will be able to 
share this cultural experience with the local community in Clerkenwell. 
At the heart of Bocas is the food. Unlike a traditional restaurant our food is all about 
sharing. Small plates of produce imported directly from Spain and Argentina and homemade 
bites such as empanadas and quesadillas, just like mum used to make! 
To accompany the food we have put together one of the most complete 
Spanish/Argentinian wine lists including some amazing vintage wines that are rarely found 
in the UK. And if wine is not your thing we have worked with some of the best mixologists in 
the UK to produce a cocktail list to rival some of the finest cocktail bars in the world. 
In the true spirit of the Argentinian Tapas bar, Bocas offers live music entertainment in our 
exclusive downstairs bar for locals to enjoy into the late hours. 
Bocas also offers a full brunch menu with coffee and tea and a heated outside area to enjoy 
those days when the sun is shining but it may not be quite as warm as Argentina! 
Our tapas bar is all about the local community and creating a one stop place for locals to 
socialize, eat, drink and share time together. 
Bocas is a table service venue and does not have the facility to accommodate standing 
customers in any areas of the venue. 
Bocas aims to be open from 10am to 11pm Monday to Wednesday and 10am to 2am on 
Thursdays to Saturdays. The outside area will only be available for use until 10pm and all 
music entertainment will take place in the basement venue with the upstairs area being 
closed from 11pm. 

Appendix 3

Page 82



We have had the pleasure of meeting many of the local residents of St John Street and 
Clerkenwell during the refurbishment of Bocas at 178-180 St John Street and the welcome 
that we have received to the area has been both encouraging and heartfelt, especially 
considering the challenges that are presented with opening a business during the difficult 
times we have all been experiencing lately. 
Having signed a 15 year lease on the premises it is our sincere intention to bring what was 
once a ‘local’ back to life and try to share some of our experiences of Spain and Argentina 
with the community. 
During the refurbishment process we have come to hear of the previous tenants (Simmons) 
and the disrespect that they had for the local area and general nuisance that they presented 
which we completely understand has left many locals fearful of a repetition. We would like 
to take this opportunity to share with everyone that ‘Simmons’ is not our business model or 
the kind of business we ever intend to run. From the local resident representations that 
have been shared with us it appears that a repetition of this style of business and the impact 
it had on the area is at the fore of any objections to our license application. We hope that by 
being able to introduce ourselves and sharing our vision for Bocas as well as addressing all 
of your concerns we can help put your concerns to rest. 
We have chosen Clerkenwell as our new home and are hoping that we will bring something 
to the area that will be a benefit for all and a nuisance for none. 
Firstly introductions; 

Paolo – You have probably seen or met me over the last few months if you are local to the 
area. Bocas has become my home! Setting up my own place has been a dream of mine for 
many years having run a number of places in London, Spain and Argentina. I pride myself on 
my approachability and customer service and have been instrumental in the success of 
many restaurants and bars over the years. My vision for Bocas is to bring back the ‘local’ 
experience that seems to have been lost in London with all of the chains and corporate 
venues that are now everywhere. I want to share my experiences of Argentina where I grew 
up and where the local tapas bar was somewhere that was a central meeting point for the 
local community to unwind, relax and enjoy special times together. 
I am always on site and hope to meet those of you that I have not already met at Bocas very 
soon to enjoy a glass of wine and some tapas together. 

Kirk – I have had the great pleasure of meeting many of the local residents on the occasions 
when I have been on site at Bocas. My role in Bocas is one more related to the business side 
of things. I run multiple businesses around the world and divide my time between, London, 
Barcelona, Sardegna and Dubai. Although Paolo and I are not related we are ‘family’ and 
share the vision of creating a family business that brings all of the values that are inherent in 
that kind of a business. Local tapas bars and socializing venues are something we take for 
granted in Spain, Italy and Argentina but something that has been lost in London and we 
really hope that we will be able to bring this back at Bocas. 
It has been a challenge to get Bocas open during Covid and with so much uncertainty in the 
hospitality sector we just hope that the local community can give us the opportunity to 
show that we will represent a valuable asset to the area. 

The licensing team at Islington council have shared with us a number of resident 
representations with concerns that have been raised in regard to what we are looking to do 

Page 83



at Bocas. As these letters are anonymous we will try to address everything here as a whole 
but welcome anyone to get in touch with us directly if we have left anything unanswered or 
there are any additional concerns that you may have. 

Noise 
One of the concerns raised is in relation to noise caused by live or recorded music especially 
late at night. We have taken the provision to install sound proofing/studio paneling in the 
basement of Bocas to reduce any impact in regard to noise outside of this space. When it 
comes to live music we only have the intention for music after 11pm to be restricted 
specifically to the downstairs basement area of the premises. In addition our vision for the 
music in the basement area is for live jazz. 

Late Night Street Nuisance 
As Bocas is a seated only venue we do not envisage the same sort of crowd that is 
associated with a bar or pub with patrons standing and drinking outside at ANY point let 
alone in the later hours. The majority of our clients will be pre bookings where we have 
their full contact details in case of any nuisance that they may cause. We have a zero 
tolerance policy on undesirable behavior of any kind and such patrons will be bared for life. 
The outside tables will be removed at 10pm and after 11pm the upstairs area will be closed 
with all patrons being seated downstairs and a security presence at the front door to deter 
and move along and potentially noisy customers. 

Previous Tenants i.e. Simmons 
Whilst we appreciate that many of the objections are related to bad experiences with the 
previous tenants, we are very respectfully NOT Simmons and our business model or aimed 
client base is on the complete opposite spectrum of what Simmons was and is. We would 
like to reference Oriole Jazz bar in Farringdon as the style of clientele we are aiming for, 
with SEATED customers enjoying, food, drinks and live music aimed at a crowd that enjoys 
these things but does not enjoy the pub/bar environment. Whilst alcohol is being served, 
our slightly higher prices and focus on our wine list is aimed at encouraging patrons to enjoy 
a drink as opposed to becoming intoxicated to the point of becoming a nuisance. There are 
plenty of places in neighboring Shoreditch that can accommodate this type of crowd. This 
type of customer will NOT be welcome at Bocas. 

In summary Bocas is a tapas bar and live music venue which aims to bring the kind of 
environment to the area that is found in Argentina and Spain. The later licensing hours that 
we are requesting will allow for our local customers to remain on the premises and enjoy 
music downstairs instead of having to travel to another area. We respectfully understand 
the concerns that many residents have and are committed to work with the community 
which we are now part of (we have signed a 15 year lease) to ensure that any legitimate 
concerns and problems are addressed, discussed and resolved. We ask for a fair chance to 
show that we can bring something positive to the area and not a repeat of the problems of 
the previous tenants. 
We have included also a number of signatures from local residents supporting our 
application for license. 
Yours sincerely 
The Bocas Team. 

Page 84



Appendix 4

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Appendix 5 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 

1. A sign reminding customers that alcohol cannot be served to persons under the age of 18 shall be

displayed at the premises.

2. All emergency exits shall be kept free from obstruction at all times All building work, and the operation

of the premises will be carried out in accordance with the appropriate legislation.

3. Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, H2O and CO2), fire

blanket, internally illuminated fire exits signs, numerous smoke detectors and emergency lighting. All

appliances are inspected annually.

4. Appropriate staff will be properly trained on action to be taken when the fire alarm is activated

Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police 

1. In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises,

the management will immediately ensure that:

a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately;

b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police;

c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any
identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police;

d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons present on
the premises at all times during operating hours.

2. An incident log shall, be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an

authorised officer, which will record:

a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue

b) Any and all complaints received by any party

c) Any faults in the CCTV system

d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

e) Any and all ejections of patrons

f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons

g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

3. CCTV, shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open for

licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:

a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system
is working properly and that the date and time are correct.

b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and
made available to the police or other authorised officer on request

c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of
business for any reason

d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full- 
length image of anyone entering

e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the
premises accessible to the public

f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped

Page 89



 

g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises 
who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view 
footage on request. 

h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided 
free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data 
Protection Act 2018) within 24 hours of any request . 

i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed at the 
premises 

4. The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme. 

a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation. 

b) Only physical production of suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or 
UK driving licence, or a holographically marked PASS scheme cards, will be accepted. A 
screenshot or digital document copy will not be sufficient. 

5. The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff and 

security levels will be disclosed on request to the Licensing Authority and the Police. The need for door 
supervisors will, be assessed by way of written and recorded risk assessment and cognisance will be 
taken of any police advice. 

6. “Chelsea Hooks” or similar bag retention devices are to be provided on the underside of tables and 

counters where customers might reasonably be expected to otherwise place their bags on the floor. 

7. The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including the conditions of the 

premises licence, age restricted products and [if they are ever left in charge of the shop] the operation 

of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits from authorised officers. The licensee shall keep 

written records of training and instructions given to each member of staff , detailing the areas covered 

to include the Licensing Objectives, identifying persons under 25, making a challenge, acceptable proof 

of age & checking it, making & recording a refusal, avoiding conflict & responsible alcohol retailing. 

Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received and understood the training. All staff who work at 

the till will, be trained for their role on induction and be given refresher training every six months.  The 

written training records kept for each staff member will, be produced to police & authorised council 

officers on request.    

8. The premises licence holder shall endeavour to eliminate or minimise any nuisance arising out of its 

licensable activities. In doing so the premises licence holder will work with enforcement authorities 

where any issues are identified. A complaints procedure will, be maintained in order that local residents 

have a means of contact if necessary. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall 

be publically available at the times the premises is open. The telephone number is to be made 

available to residents and businesses in the vicinity. 

9. The supply of alcohol shall be ancillary to a table meal and shall be supplied to seated customers at 

table by waiter/waitress. There will be no vertical drinking at the premises. 

10. The premises shall only operate as a restaurant, which provides food in the form of substantial meals 

that are prepared on the premises. There will always be the provision of food available, whenever 

alcohol is being served. Soft/non-intoxicating drinks will be available at all times when the premises is 

open for licensable activities 

11. Regarding all off sales: alcohol is only to be sold for consumption off the premises where it is 

purchased as an ancillary to food or when served to seated customers at tables outside the premises 

within the hours granted by a current valid pavement or tables and chairs licence in place. It will also 

be allowed for part finished bottles of wine to be re-sealed and taken home by customers after their 

meal 

12. Regarding any off sales for delivery, made by way of telephone/internet orders, the following will be 

adhered to: 

Page 90



 

a) No alcohol delivery unless accompanying the purchase of food. 

b) No more than four beers/ciders or a 750 ml bottle of wine per individual order. 

c) Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including underage sales , 
sales to a person who is drunk , obtaining alcohol for a child or a person who is drunk and 
delivering alcohol to someone under the age of 18 . 

d) Any person taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the premises licence holder 
will in for all customers that proof of age by way of photographic driving licence, passport or a 
form of identification with the PASS hologram will be required at point of delivery before alcohol 
is supplied. 

12a The licensee, shall ensure that any delivery service employed to facilitate the delivery of alcohol, as an 

ancillary to a food order, has an adequate proof of age scheme in place, such as Challenge 25, to be 
undertaken at the point of delivery to any customer. The licensee shall practice best endeavours to 
ensure that no internal combustion engine vehicles are used for deliveries from the premises. If 
internal combustion engine vehicle are used for deliveries, the licensee shall ensure that drivers do not 
park or loiter, in the vicinity of residential premises. The premises will operate a no idling policy.  

12b. Any website from which customers can order food and drink to be delivered to a home address will 

contain a message to the effect that alcoholic products can only be purchased by persons who are over 

the age of 18 years, and that identification will be requested when the alcohol is delivered. 

13. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises do so in in an 

orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to ensure that there is no public nuisance or 

obstruction of the public highway. A maximum of 6 smokers shall be permitted to stand outside the 

frontage at any one time. 

14. The premises, shall not be hired out to any third party 

15. The premises to operate a zero tolerance policy to drugs. 

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority 

1. Alcohol shall only be available with a main table meal and there shall be no vertical drinking on the 

premises, save for up to eight customers awaiting a table in the ground floor bar area. 

2. That core policy hours be applied to this licence, Sunday to Thursday until 11pm and on Fridays and 

Saturdays until midnight. 

3. Recorded or live music or entertainment shall be at background level only on the ground floor. 

4. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nerby properties. 

5.  In the event of noise nuisance being established, the licensee shall appoint an acoustic consultant 

accredited by the Institute of Acoustics or the Association of Noise Consultants to install an 

entertainment noise control system and come to agreements with the Council regarding maximum 

levels of amplified sound at the premises. 

6. If the above licence condition is required, the agreed maximum levels of amplified sound hall be 

expressed on the premises licence. 

7. There shall be a written dispersal and noise management policy, a copy of which shall be kept on the 

premises and produced to an authorised officer upon request. 

Conditions proposed by the Council’s Noise Service 

8. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby properties. 

9. Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall not 

cause a nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity. Any filters, ducting and extract fan 

shall be cleaned and serviced regularly. 

Page 91



 

10. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee shall 

take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. 

11. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public to respect the 

needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

12. The delivery of licensable goods to the premises shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 

23:00 Monday-Saturday. No deliveries of licensable goods to the premises shall be made on a Sunday 

or Bank Holiday. 

13. The collection of refuse shall be restricted to the hours between 07:00 and 23:00 Monday-Saturday. 

No waste collections shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday. 

14. The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any rubbish and smoking litter associated with the 

business at the end of trade each evening. 

15. Any music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound. 

16. Alcohol may only be consumed on the premises while being seated at a table. 

17. The last sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall be 30 minutes before the stated closing 

time. 

18. No more than 5 patrons, at any one time, shall use the frontage of the premises to smoke after 

21:00hrs until closing. Signage shall be displayed to advise customers of this. 

19. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises do so on an 

orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to ensure that there is no public nuisance or 

obstruction of the public highway. 

20. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at the times the 

premises is open. The telephone number is to be made available to residents and businesses in the 

vicinity. 

21. Exterior lighting shall be directed away from residential properties. 

22. All doors and windows will remain closed from 21:00 hours, except for access or egress. 

23. All speakers will be positioned as to face away from doors or windows. 

24. All speakers will be isolated from walls and ceilings on anti-vibration mounts or pads. 

25. Details of licensed taxi services will be made available to facilitate customers making onward journeys. 

26. Customers will not be allowed or encouraged to congregate in the entrance/exit of the premises except 

in an emergency. 

27. Customers will not be permitted to take drinks outside of the premises onto the pavement in open 

containers. 

28. Prior to any regulated entertainment taking place after 2300 on any day, the licensee shall appoint an 

acoustic consultant accredited by the Institute of Acoustics or the Association of Noise Consultants to 

install an entertainment noise control system and come to agreements with the Council regarding 

maximum levels of amplified sound at the premises. 

a. If the above licence condition is required, the agreed maximum levels of amplified sound shall 
be expressed on the premises licence. 

b. If the above licence condition is required, the entertainment noise control system shall be 
monitored, checked and calibrated as necessary, so that the levels approved by the Council, are 
not exceeded. 

29. The controls for the entertainment noise control system shall be located in a secure, lockable cupboard 

or similar location. The entertainment noise control system is to be independent of control by persons 

Page 92



 

other than the licensee. Access to the entertainment noise control system is to be restricted to the 

Licensee or a designated manager. 

Conditions proposed by the Council’s Trading Standards Service 

30. The licensee shall adopt a ‘Challenge 25’ policy and promote it through the prominent display of 

posters. 

31. The licensee shall put arrangements in place to ensure that before serving alcohol to persons they 

believe to be less than 25, staff ask to see accredited proof of age: that is, proof of age cards carrying 

the ‘PASS’ logo (and no others), a Passport, or UK Driving Licence bearing the photograph and date of 

birth of the bearer. 

32. The licensee shall ensure that staff are trained about age-restricted products and ensure that they sign 

to confirm that they have understood the training. The licensee shall keep records of training and 

instructions given to staff, detailing the areas covered, and make them available for inspection upon 

request by the licensing team, police or trading standards. 

33. The licensee shall require staff to note any refusals to sell to young people in a refusals log. The 

refusals log shall be made available for inspection upon request by the licensing team, police or trading 

standards. 

Page 93



P
age 94


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 Boca's, 178-180 St John Street, EC1V 3JY - New premises licence
	New-30Sep21=ApplicationRedacted
	New-30Sep21-Plan
	Appendix 2 Reps
	Appendix 3.docx
	Map




